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DE ITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
KESAR India Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of Cash Flow for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2025 and profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our Audit of Standalone financial statement of the current financial year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our Audit of Standalone financial
statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. There are no significant key
audit matters observed by us except the matters reported in the notes to accounts.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
(‘other information')

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprise the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
& Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
. nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditors Responsibility for the audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a)

b)

d)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of non-detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditors’
Report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statement or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion are based on
the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our Auditors’ Report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statement, including the disclosure and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underline transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the
standalone financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statement of such entities include in

the standalone financial statements.




Materiality 1s the magnitude of misstatements 1n the standalone fnnancial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decision of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factor in (I) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (II) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
compiled with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our Auditors’ Report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 (the order), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2025 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”.

g)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our
Opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The Company has disclosed the pending litigations in its financial statement
which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the investor education and protection fund by the company.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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6) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as
per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

For RHAD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Not 102588W

Dinesh C Bangar
(Partner) TN

M. No.: 036247 N5 o007
UDIN : 25036247BMLWWO02015
Place: Mumbai

Date: 21/05/2025




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Referred to in paragraph (1)
of our report of even date)

1i

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a he Company has maintained proper records showin particulars, including
The Company h intained prop ds showing full ticul includin
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and if so,
the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(o) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us,
we report that the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
company which is shown in Fixed Assets.

(d) Company does not have any intangible assets.
(e) Company has not revalued any assets during the financial year.
(f) As per the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated

against the Company in respect of Benami Property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information
and explanations given to us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 20 Crore
from Punjab National Bank on the basis of mortgage of Immovable Properties held by
Director / Shareholder of the company and also from H.D.E.C. Bank Ltd. For Rs 2.50
Crores against lien of fixed deposits.
As informed by the management, The quarterly returns or statements are not required to
be submitted to the Bank as the company has taken the Overdraft facility.

According to information and explanation given to us, During the year, The Company has not
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. However, the Company has granted loan to its middle east wholly owned subsidiary
amounting to Rs. 23.25 Lakhs and the terms and conditions are not prejudicial to the company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections
185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and the rules framed thereunder; and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order
is not applicable.




vi We are informed that the Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and
accordingly paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable.

vii In respect of statutory dues:

() ' The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to
the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there are no statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii = As informed by the management and verification made by us, There were no transactions relating

to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
| year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix | (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(<) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, Term Loans are
applied for the purpose for which the term loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries.
(6 The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

X (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

xi () No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

| (b) - No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) There is no whistle blower complaint received during the Year.

xii The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.
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xiii  According to the information and explanations given to us, All transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 Where applicable, the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

xiv  The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business
and we have considered the reports of Internal Auditor.

XV As per the information and explanation given to us the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or person connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii | The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year

xviii ~ During the year, There is no resignation of statutory auditor of the Company.

xix On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX During the year, Company has spent the required CSR expenditure.

ForRHAD & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Nd’iﬂz 588W

Dinesh C Bangar- M. No.
(Partner) \” B

M. No.: 036247

Place: Mumbai

Date: 21-05-2025




Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kesar India
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the statement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

ForRHAD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ne:102588W

DineshCBangérZ_ :
(Partner) N/
M.No.: 036247 itz
Place: Mumbai

Date: 21-05-2025




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
CIN: 151220MH2003PLC142989

g = mbers, Mount Road, Sadar, Nagpur-440001
Email:- Info@kesarlands.com. Tel:- 0712-2568888
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
Asat Asat
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. Lacs Lacs
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share capital 2 2,471.28 2471.28
(b) Reserves and surplus 3 2,312.55 45251
{c) Money Received against Share Warrants = 2
178383 2,92379 |
2. Long Term Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 176.35 133.82
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 - -
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 3 =
(d) Other Long Term Provisions 6 28.63 20.36
204.98 154.18
3. Current liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 7 2,481.44 2,007.75
(b) Trade Payable 8
(i) Total outstanding dues of MSME - =
{if) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
M5SME 262,75 2,904.83
(c) Other current liabilities 9 1,138.69 1.494.00
(d) Short Term Provisions 10 660.40 397.52
4,543.28 6,814.09
TOTAL 9,532.10 9,892.05
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 27376 70.16
Intangible assets - 5
(b) Mon Current Investments = 4
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 26.48 3.78
(d) Long-term loans and advances 12 288.29 10.49
(e) Other Non Current Assels = =
588.53 54.43
2. Current assels
(a) Current Investments 13 27.61 17232
(b) Inventory 14 4,442.21 5,618.59
(c) Trade Receivables 15 138.49 246.62
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 16 3,115.74 3,623.65
(e) Short-term loans and advances - -
(f) Other Current Assets 17 1,219.52 146.46
8,943.57 9,807.63
TOTAL) 9,532.10 9,892.05
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For RHAD and Company For and on behalf of Board of Director
Chartered Accountants KESAR INDIA LIMITED
(ICAI Firm Registration No, 10
Dinesh ar pla achin Gupta
Tartner oletime Director Managing Director
MembersHip No: 036247 A DIN 02331896 DIN 07289877
[
> B
(&}khmi Gupta 65hiba Jain
3 ey ; Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
\\7Z, PAN: AYQPG3689K  PAN: AOJPJ8945C
Place: Nagpiir Flace : Nagpur Place : Nagpur
iDa'le 1 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025 Date ; 21/05/2025
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KESAR INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L51220MH2003PLC142989
Regd. Off :- 2nd Floor, Saraf Chambers, Mount Road, Sadar, Nagpur-440001
Email:- Info@kesarlands.com. Tel:- 0712-2568888
Audited Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Not For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
’ Lacs Lacs
INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations 18 8,066.38 5,263.30
(b) Other income 19 210.53 57.91
Total Income (A) 8,276.91 5,321.21
Expenses
(a) Cost of Goods Sold 22313& 4,248.99 2,804.75
(b) Employee benefits expense 21 329.99 217.53
(c) Finance cost 22 97.80 1447
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 69.04 36.34
(e) Other expenses 23 1,040.92 842,53
Total Expenses (B) 5,786.75 3,915.61
Profit before tax (A-B) 2,490.16 1,405.60
Tax expense (C)
(a) Current tax 660.40 397.52
(b) Deferred tax Liabilities/ (Assets) 5 -22.70 1.04
637.69 398.56
Profit after tax (B-C) 1,852.47 1,007.04
Earnings per share 26
(a) Basic 7.44 20.95
(b) Diluted 7.44 20.95
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For RHAD and Company
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm Registration No; 102588

For and on behalf of Board of Director
KESAR INDIA LIMITED

//
f“\o
=
Dinesh Bangar | O upta chin Gupta
Partner \ % Wholetime Director Managing Director
N -P DIN 0233189 DIN 07289877

Membership No. 036247

gbkhuri Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Place : Nagpur
Date : 21/05/2025

PAN: AYQPG3689K

Flace : Nagpur
Date : 21/05/2025

PAN: AOJP]8945C

Place : Nagpur
Date : 21/05/2025




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
CIN: 1L51220MH2003PLC142989
= r. Saraf Cham nt Road, Sadar, Nagpur.
Email:- Info@kesarlands.com. Tel:- 0712-2568888
Audited Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st Mar, 2025
Rupees In Lacs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 2,490.16 1,405.60
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 69.04 3634
Interest Expenses 97.80 14.47
Emplayee Benefit Expenses - Gratulity 8.27 -4.99
Balance Written Off - -
Interest on FDR & IT Refund (105.02) (57.19))
Dividend Received (1.49) (0.03)
Profit / Loss on sale of Shares (103.71) (0.48)
(35.10) ~11.88
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,455.06 1,393.72
anges in working capital;
(Increase) /Decrease in Inventories 1,176.38 (4,669.73)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 108.13 (90.36)
(Increase)/ Decrease in loans and advances and other current assets (1,350.86) 902.10
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (2,642.07) 2,904.83
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Liabilities (335.30) 657.02
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Liabilities - (151.80)
(3,063.73) -447.95
Cash G d from Operati (608.67) 945.77
Income tax paid (Net) (389.94) (29.22)
Net Cash used in Operating Activities (998.61) 916.55
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (317.88) (244)
Sale of Fixed Assets 4523 -
Investment in Shares & Mutual Fund 14471 (172.32)
Interest on FDR & IT Refund 105.02 57.19
Dividend Received 149 0.03
Profit / Loss on sale of Shares 10371 048
Net Cash used in Investing Activities 8227 ~117.05
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid (97.80) (14.47)
Net Receipt of Borrowings 463.69 201775
Net Repayment of Borrowings 4254 (62.03)
MNet Cash from Financing Activities 408.43 1,941.25
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (507.91) 2,740.76
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,623.65 B82.89
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,115.74 3,623.65
For RHAD and Company A& f D\ For and on behalf of Board of Director
Chartered Accountants L N = %\ KESAR INDIA LIMITED
(ICAT Ejrm Registration No. 102588W) A
Dinesh Bangar zhm Gupta
Partner I f /Wholetime Director Managing Director
Membership No. ua’g._zq?_ ] / DIN 023318% DIN 07259877
i Gupta ‘'oshiba Jain
Chief Financial Office Company Secretary
PAN: AYQPG3689K PAN: AQJPJ8945C
Place : Nagpur Place : Nagpur Place : Nagpur
Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

5No

Particulars

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

KESAR INDIA LIMITED "the Company” (Formerly known as "Kesar Impex (India) Private Limited") was incorporated on 05th
November, 2003 as a private limited company and converted from Private Limited to Public Limited company on 15th December,
2021. The Company is engaged to carry on the business as builders, property developers, Engineering Contractors, Civil,
mechanical and labour contractors, building and erection engineers, consultants, dealers in, importers, exporters and manufactures
of prefabricated and precast houses, materials, tools, implements, machinery and metalware in connection therewith or incidental
thereto and to purchase, acquire, take on lease or in exchange or in any other lawful manner any area, land, buildings, structures
and to turn the same into account, develop the same, dispose off or maintain the same and give away for rentals.

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAF) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of restated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts in
the financial statements and reported notes thereto. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences between the
actual result and estimates are recognized in periods in which the results are known/ materialized.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of]
an asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition for its
intended use. Expenditure on additions, improvements and renewals is capitalized and expenditure for maintenance and repairs is
charged to profit and loss account.

Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the Written Down Value (WDV) Method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule IT to Companies Act, 2013.

Assets costing Rs. 5000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase

Stock

Inventory are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories
comprises of cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing them to their respective present condition. Cost of Inventory is
determined on FIRST IN FIRST OUT BASIS.

Valuation of Investments:
i. Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long term investments.

li. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on the basis of category of investment.

iii. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other
than temporary in the value of investments.




Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be

reliably measured. Revenue/Income and Cost/Expenditure are accounted on accrued basis, insignificant items which are
accounted on cash basis.

Revenue from Sale of Plots activities is recognised when Sale Deed is executed each project wise, customer obtains control of the|
property transferred and a reasonable expectation of collection of the sale consideration from the customer exists,

Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering of services are classified as short term benefits. Benefits include|
salaries, wages, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay, etc. and are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. Liability on account of encashment of leave, Bonus to employee is considered as short term compensated expense
provided on actual.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of such,
assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Earning Per Share:
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year after prior period adjustments attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Taxation & Deferred Tax:

Provision for Current Tax is made in accordance with the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax is recognized on timing
differences between taxable & accounting income / expenditure that originates in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent period(s).

Contingent Liabilities / Provisions:

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is,
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made. Contingent liabilities are not provided in the accounts and are disclosed separately in notes to accounts.




{KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 2: Share capital

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Authorised:
4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 /- each. 4,000.00 4,000.00
(P.Y. 4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 /- each.)
Total 4,000.00 4,000.00
|lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
2,47,12,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. 2471.28 353.04
(P.Y. 35,30,400 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Bonus Share issued
2,11,82,400 Equity Share of Rs 10/- each = 211824
Total 2,471.28 2,471.28
Notes:
(i) Rights of Equity Shareholders

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In the event of
liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assels of the company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

(ii) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the End of the Year:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars

Number of Amount in | Number of shares

1 held Lacs held A tin Lacs
|Shares outstanding at the beginning 247,12,800 2471.28 35,30,400 353.04
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the - - 2,11,82,400 2,118.24
year
Add: New Shares issued during the - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the 2,47,12,800 247128 2,47,12,800 2471.28
year

(iii) Details of Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of aggregate Equity shares in

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of Equity Shareholder Number of
shares held % holding Y holding Y% holding
GOPAL GUPTA 1,67,28,600 67.69% 1,67,28,600 67.69%
AG DYNAMIC FUNDS LIMITED 17,36,000 7.02% 17,36,000 7.02%
FORBES EMF 13,66,400 5.53% 13,66,400 5.53%

(iv) Details of Shareholding of Promoters Group as on 31.03.2025

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % Change
Promoter Name Number of Number of shares during the
shares held % holding held % holding year
GOPAL GUPTA 1,67,28,600 67.69% 1,67,28,600 67.69% 0.00%
SANGEETA GOPAL GUPTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
YASH GUPTA 875476 3.54% 8,75,476 3.54% 0.00%
SACHIN GUPTA 9,26,324 3.75% 9,26,324 3.75% 0.00%
PANKHURI GUPTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
SHWETA GUFTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
YASH GUPTA HUF 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
[TOTAL 1,85,33,200 74.99% 1,85,33,200 74.99%

(v) Company has issued Bonus shares 2,11,82,400 of Rs. 10/- each in F.Y. 2023-24 and 2,574,000 Equity Share of Rs 10/~ each in
F.Y. 2022-23,




KESAR INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3: Reserves and Surplus

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year = 1,466.15
Add: Received on issue of new shares - -
Add/(Less): IPO related expenses - -
capitalised
Less: Utilisation during the year » 1,466.15
Balance at the end of the year - -
a) Surplus of Profit and Loss Account 452.51 97.78
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 1,852.47 1,007.04
Add/(Less): Bonus shares issued - -652.09
during the year
Add/(Less): Adjustment Made Due to 7.58 -0.22
Earlier Year Income Tax
2,312.55 452.51
Total 2,312.55 452.51
Note 4: Long Term Borrowings
Particul As at As at
RREAE March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Secured Loans
- Car Loan 176.35 2245
(b) Unsecured Loans
- From Directors - 82.57
- From Related Parties - 28.80
Total 176.35 133.82

TG,




Note 5: Deferred Tax Liability/Asset

Particul As at As at
artieulacs March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Opening Balance -3.78 -4.82
Add/Less: DTL / (DTA) -22.70 1.04
Closing Balance -26.48 -3.78
Note 6: Other Long Term Provisions
: As at As at
Parti
Alars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Provision for Employee Benefits
(Gratuity) 28.63 20.36
Total 28.63 20.36

Note 7: Short Term Borrowings

6.1 : Gratuity provisions are made in accordance with Actuarial Valuation provided by Valuer (Trueval Consulting)

Particulars Auat i
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Secured Loans
- Punjab National Bank-OD Account 1,981.37 2,017.75
- HDFC Bank -OD Account 0.07 -
(b) Unsecured Loans
- From Directors 100.00 -
- From Related Parties 400.00
Total 2,481.44 2,017.75

Note No 7.1

held by the company.

a) The company is having Overdraft Facility of Rs. 20 Crore from Punjab National Bank against mortgage of
Immovable Properties held by Director / Shareholder of the company.
b) The company is having Overdraft Facility of Rs. 2.56 Crore from HDFC Bank against Pledge of Fixed Deposits




Note 8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
31.03.2025 (%)
Less than 1 year 12 years 23 years Hope than Total
years
(i) MSME e =, a 2 Z
(ii) Others 260.75 2.00 - - 262.75
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME " = s
(iv) Disputed dues - Others i a Z - 4
260.75 2,00 - - 262.75
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
31.03.2024 (3)
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;ee:l:sm i Total
(i) MSME " = %
(ii) Others 2,904.83 = F 2,904.83
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME = - = - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - ” a
2,904.83 = - . 2,904.83
Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Statutory Dues 7.25 8.89
(b) Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 39.26 20.57
(¢) Advance Taken L
- From Related Parties 0.00 0.00
- From Customers 419.87 1180.26
(d) Expenses Payable
- Provision for Project Development Expenses 318.72 0.00‘
(Note No. 20.1)
- Provision Amenties for Project Expenses 321.11 200.28
(Note No. 23.1)
- Auditor Remuneration Payable 3.60 2.95
- Salary Payable to Directors/Shareholders 8.74 69.60
- Salary & Wages Payable 18.15 10.48
- Other Expenses Payable 1.99 1.67
Total 1,138.69 1,494.00
Note 10: Short Term Provisions
Particnl As at As at
IR March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Provision for Income Tax 660.40 397.52
Total 660.40 397.52

10.1 Income Tax Provisions have been made in accordance with the prevailing provisions of L.T.Act 1961




Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Security Deposits
- Rent Deposits 46.29 6.20
- CCD & Nestle Machine Deposits 0.40 0.25
- Eletricity Security Deposit 1.25 0.75
- Security Deposit at NMRDA 3.29] 3.29
b) Loans Given
To Related Parties 237.06 0.00
To Others 0.00 0.00|
Total 288.29 10.49
Note 13: Current Investments
¥ As at As at
Facdowlat March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(A) Quoted shares & Mutual Fund
Investment in securities - 162.32
Investment in Mutual Fund - 10.00
(B) Unquoted
Investment in Subsidiary Companies 27.10 “
Investment in Partnership Firms 0.51 -
Total 27.61 172.32

Note 14: Inventories

Note 13.1: Market Value of Quated Shares and Mutual Fund as on 31-03-2025 is Rs - NIL (Previous Year 1,74,72,978.59/-)

Parficuln Asat Agat
- March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
L. STOCK OF LAND
(a) Land Cost 2,863.65 3,910.27
(b) Development Cost (WIP) 938.43 1,708.33
II. STOCK of Shares and Securites
(a) Equity Shares 640.13 -
4,442.21 5,618.59




Note 15: Trade Receivables

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 31.03.2025 ()

Particulars

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payments#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Total
(T)

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered qoods
(i.a) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered goods - Overseas Branch

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered goods

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Credit impaired

92.72

20.77

25.00

138.49

Total

92.72

20.77

25.00

138.49

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 31.03.2024 (%)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Total
(T)

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered goods
(i.a) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered goods - Overseas Branch

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -

Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Considered goods
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

which have significant increase in

credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Credit impaired

71.51

110.10

65.00

246.62

Total

1i0.10

65.00

246.62




Note 16: Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Cash - in - hand 21.79 21.18
b) Bank Balance 912.76 1383.91
c¢) FDR having maturity within 12 months 2181.18 2218.56
Total 3,115.74 3,623.65
Note 17: Other Current Assets
. Asat As at
Eachanlars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Advances to Suppliers / Service Providers 187.77 1.81
b) Site Development Exp 65.25 20.99
¢) Advance For Land 422.00 2.50
d) Advance Tax & TDS 251.48 52.32
e) Salary & Expenses Advance 53.26 5.19
f) Prepaid Expenses 54,37 25.90|
g) Zerodha Broking 0.00} 37.74
h) Advances to Subsidary 185.39 0.00
Comapanies/ Partnership Firms
Total 1,219.52 146.46




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

11: d 1
| | | | | (Figure In Lacs)
Particulars Gross block Depreciaton Net Block
Asat 'Ac at As at As al
Asat 31 March, 2025 B - 31 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2025
01st April Additions Deductions Asat of Depieciation Deductions
2024 £ 01st April, 2024 | Accounting| for the year
Policy
(Note 7.1)
(a) CAR & Electrical Vechile 16217 243.87 4523 360.80 105.49 0.00 5293 0.00 15842 202.39
(b) Plant & Machinery 3.00 1.39 0.00 4.39 232 0.00 0.31 0.00 263 175
(c) Office Equipments 15.04 25.20 0.00 4024 10.26 0.00 7.19 0.00 17.45 22 80
(d) Computer & Printer 11.53 9.11 0.00 20.65 8.32 0.00 364 0.00 11.96 B.68
(e) Furniture & Fixture 7.13 38.31 0.00 4544 233 0.00 4.97 0.00 7.30 38.14
Total 198.87 317.88 45.23 47151 123.71 0.00 69.04 0.00 197.76 273.76
Previous Year | 196.43 | 28] 198,87 | 92.37 | = | 3634 | | 12871 ] 70.16




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 18: Revenue from Operations

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Sale of Units 7636.43 5263.30|
Sale of Securites 429,95 0.00
Total 8066.38 5263.30

Notes 18.1:- In earlier period, Company had made Investment in Listed Equities and
Mutual Funds which was shown as current Investment of the company till 30th
September, 2024. Since the Company is doing frequent transactions in Share Trading
activities; It is decided by the Management to disclose all theses transactions as another
business activity of the company. Accordingly, all the transactions executed by the

company from 1st October 2024 onwards is shown under Revenue from Operations.

Note 19 : Revenue from Operations

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Lacs Lacs
- Interest Income 105.02 57.19
- Dividend Income 1.49 0.03
- Miscellaneous Income 0.32 0.21
- Gain on Sales of Shares & Mutual Fund 103.71 048

(Apr-24 to Sep-24)

Total 210.53 57.91

Note 19.1:- Interest Income includes the Interest on Loan charged on Wholly owned
subsidiary amounting to Rs 4.56 Lacs (AED 19589)




Note 20A: Change in Inventory

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs

Opening Stock including WIP

- Land Cost 3910.27 481.68
- Development Cost of Land 1708.33 467.18
TOTAL [A] 5618.59 948.86
Purchase & Direct Expenses
Cost of Land Purchase 845.28 5023.63
including Stamp Duty &
Registration
Direct Expenses incurred 762.21 2450.85
during the year for
Development of Land
Estimated Expenses to be 318.72 0.00
incured (Notes 20A.1)
TOTAL [B] 1926.21 7474.48
Closing Stock including WIP

- Closing Stock of Land 2863.65 3910.27
- Development Cost of Land 938.43 1708.33
TOTAL [C] 3802.08 5618.59

Total 3742.72 2804.75

Note 20. A. 1 Provision for expenses is made amounting to Rs 318.72 Lacs (P.Y. NIL) in
respect of "KESAR GOLD" & "KESAR GARDEN-2" projects in propornate to the
estimated development expenses to be incured to complete the project as per document

submitted to Rera Authority.




Note 20B: Stock in Inventory

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Opening Stock of Shares and
securities
- Opening Stock As on 01-10-24 42748 0.00
TOTAL [A] 427.48 0.00
Purchase During the year
Purchase Durig the period 718.92 0.00
TOTAL [B] 718.92 0.00
Closing Stock of Shares and
securities
- Closing Stock 640.13 0.00
TOTAL [C] 640.13 0.00|
[Valued at Lower of Cost or
Market Value]
Cost of Goods Sold 506.27 0.00
Note 21: Employee Benefit Expenses
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Salary to Directors 112.00 107.00
Salaries and Wages 192.33 104.70}
Provision for Gratuity 8.27 -4.99
Staff Welfare Expenses 17.39 10.82
Total 329.99 217.53

21.1: Gratuity provisions are made in accordance with Actuarial Valuation provided by

Valuer.

Note 22: Finance Cost

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Interest on Car Loan 13.72 4.68
Bank Charges 8.86 8.04
Interest on Q1) facil /oTB.22F 1.75
(i >\ 97.8{]' 14.47




Note 23: Other Expenses

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs

Audit Fees 4.36 2.50
Project Site Expenses 135.67 249.26
Conveyance Expenses 15.39 17.16
Office Expenses 67.09 19.82
Insurance & Vechile Insurance Charges 8.63 5.05
Brokerage and Commission Charges 229.41 252.48
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Fees 103.90) 50.34
Rates and Taxes 4.65 35.67
Electricity Charges 10.62 5.93
Travelling Expenses 131.56 65.20
Repair and Maintenance - Office 8.54 6.14
Repair and Maintenance - Vehicle 8.21 3.53
Rent Expenses 57.47 13.29
Miscellaneous Expenses 67.75 17.83
Membership & Subscription Charges 23.63 11.82
Telephone and Communication Expense 12.32 8.18
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Exp 80.85 63.11
Printing & Stationery Charges 5.99 10.62
CSR Expenses 13.97 4.60)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 5.23 0.00
Tender & Processing Fees Charges 11.30 0.00
Business Conference expenses 30.24 0.00
Security Transaction Charges 413 0.00

Total 1040.92 842.53

Note 23.1 : Project Site expenses include the provision for project expenses to be incurred
amounting to Rs. 121.45 (P.Y. : 200.28) for providing the various amenities under the project.




Note 24, Related Party Details :-

E.Y. 2024-25
Name of Party _ Relation
Gopal Gupta Relative of Director - - 34.50 | 15.00| 116777 - - 400.00 400.00 - - -9.01
Sangeeta Gupta Director - - 16.80 3.91 | 1,474.00 = - 100.00 100.00 - - -
Yash Gupta Diirector - - 31.27| s50.00 - - - - - 3.14 -
Sachin Gupta Director - - - 50.00 - - - = = 317 -
Pankhuri Gupta Director = - - 12.00 - - - - - - 1.20 =
Shweta Gupta Director - - 10.00 - - - - - - 1.22 -
Nishit Gupta Relative of Directar - - - - 30.67 - - - - - 30.67
Kesar Green Power Pyt Lid ‘Whn! Crwned Subsidiry 100 - - - - 0.64 - - - - - 0.64
¥ K Infracon Pyt Ltd Wholy Owned Subsidiry 100 - - - - 0.28 - - - - 0,28
[Propanap Realty Pyt Ltd Stepdown Subsidicy
Y K Infraproject Pyt Ltd Whely Owned Subsidiry 100 - = - 0.56 - - - - 0.56
Kesar Natural Pt Led Whely Owned Subsidiry 100 - = - - 2B.31 = - - - - 28.31
Eesar IM Infraprojects Partniership Firm-51% Share 51 49 - - - 155.58 11.51 - - 11.00 - 155.84
Hesar Maitreya Realties Partnership Firm-51% Share 51 49 - - - - - - - - -
Kesar Middle East - FZCO | Wholy Owned Subsidiry 100 - 232.50 - - - - 0.00 X 237.06 = = =
M/S DEJA VUE-FZCO Stepdown Subsidiry
! Enterprise wherein the Director)
ifoaini Fel e or Relative of Director of the - - 28 80 - - - = - = - 20,77
- L {company are the Director [
Hesan Cutemay et Lid Sharehold - - s 116.73 s - - s 116.73
F.Y. 2023-24
Holding % Details
Name of Party Relation Uisesared
- ; Mt ol a b
Indis Ltd <ty
Gopal Gupta Relative of Dircctas - - 6.00] 15.00| 2,007.21 - - - 3449 - 2.11 1,156.57
Sangeeta Gupta Director - - 5.00 | 2,007.21 - = 16.80 - 3.91 1,463.00
Yash Gupta Director = - 33.05 45.00 - - - - 3127 - 26.98 N
Sachin Qupta Director - - - 45.00 - - - - - - 34.54 -
Pankhun Gupta Director - - - 12.00 - - - - 0.90 -
Shweta Gupta Director - - - 10.00 - - - - - 0.76 -
= Enterprise wherein the Director
Kesar Infracon Pet Ltd ]
r Relative of Directar of the = = 2.40 e » - - 28.79 | 11010
Kesar Gateway Pyt Ltd company are the Director [
Sharehalder - - - - 1,891.59 - - - - - -




Note 25. Details of foreign currency transaction :-

Asat Asat March 31,
Particulars March 31, 2025 2024
a) Income in Foreign Currency
Export Income = ‘
|b) Expenditure in Foreipn Currency
Travelling 26.53 -
Others = -
Note 26. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share
Asat Asat March 31,
Fationines March 31,2025 2024
Net Profit / (Loss) for the vear 1,838.63 1,007.04
Weighted Average Number of shares at year end
247.13 48,07
Basic Earning, per share 744 2095
Diluted Earning per share 744 20.95]

Note 27. Disclosure under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31st March 2025. Dues lo Micro and Small Enterprises have
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.

Mote 28. Financial Ratio

i s Asat As at March 31,

Financial Ratio Details March 31, 2025 2024 Variance (in %)

Current Ratio 1.96 1.44 36.35%
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.04 0.05 -17.74%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 19.63 40.65 -51.71%
Return on Equity Ratio 38.55% 34.44% 11.91%
Inventory Turnover Ratio 0.41 228 -82.03%
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 41.89 2613 60.33%
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 122 5.15 -76.37%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.84 176 4.59%
Net Profit Ratio 22.79% 19.13% 19.13%
Return on Capital Emploved 52.02% 16.14% 12.75%

hMethudqugy z

1. Current Ratio = Current Asset/Current Liability

2. Debt-Equity Ration = Total Debt/{Total Debl + Equity)

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITDA,/ Finance Cosl

4. Return on Equity Ratio = Profit Afler Tax/ Tolal Shareholder's Equity

3. Invenlory Turnover Ralio = Purchase/ Inventory

6, Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio = Revenue from Operations, Trade Receivable

7. Trade Payables turnover ratio = Purchase/Trade Payable

8. Net Capital ratio = Revenue From Operalions/ (Current Asset - Current Liability)
9. Net Profit ratio = Profit After Tax/ Revenue From Operations

10. Return on Capital Employed = Earning before Interest and Taxes/ (Total Shareholder's Equity+ Long Term Liability)

1Reason for more than 25% variance in ratio:

During the vear, there is significant reduction in

CumreniRaly Trade Payables and increase in Business Advances.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Punng llje vear , Finance Cost is increased due to
increase in secured loan.

During the year, Purchase including Direct Cost is
Inventory Turnover Ratio reduced.
s ; . During the vear, Increase in Turnover and
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio reduction in Trade Receivables.
During the year, Significant reduction in Trade

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Payables.




Note 29. Loans Given, Investment Made and Guarantee given covered under sec. 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) The Company has not given any loans or guarantees other than shown in Financial statements.
(1) The Company has not made any Investments other than shown in Financial statements,

Note 30. Contingent Liabilities

a) Company has given Bank Guarantee of Rs, 12,50 Lakh for installation of STP & Maintainces & 87.50 Lakh for towards
Maintaince of Infrastructure of Works on Project to C; Board, Kamptee, Nagpur, Maharashtra through ICICI Bank
on dated 12/04/2024 respectively . Company has submitted the Fixed Deposit for Security of said Bank Guarantee.

31. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

The particulars of expenditure are as follows:

@) During the year company has Spent Rs. 13.97 Lacs on account of Corporate social responsibilities (P.Y. amount spent was,
4.60 Lacs)

32. Additional Disclosures

a) The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property.

b) The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

c) The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or|
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

d) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search
or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

e) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and any
of the previous financial years,

f) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregale) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any,
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

g) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company,
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in|
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 33. General

In the opinion of the Management, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the Books of Accounts and provision for all known liabilities has been made, except as
mentioned otherwise.

Nate 34. The Reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.

|Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edil log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for,
all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software,

Note 35. The figures of previous vear have been regrouped /rearranged /reclassified wherever necessary to comparable to

|the classification of the current year. —
= /0018
For RHAD and Company | . N o For and on behalf of Board of Director
Chartered Accoyfitants < oNg ‘;"
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 102588W) [/ o Na g pu - ‘:‘_
/ ke
f ] y \ Q ;
\ 57 el S N /  Yas Gupta in Gupta
Partner N 7 "SR 7 letime Director Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer ~Company Secretary
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Dale: 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025




(A RHAD & CO.

INDIA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office:- 304, Sohan Commercial Plaza, Near Railway Station, Vasai Road (East), Dist. Palghar 401208.
Tel: 9326675367 / 9561876128
Email:-dineshbv12@gmail.com,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

To

The Board of Directors of

Kesar India Limited

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial results of Kesar India Limited (Holding
Company") and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group") for the year ended March 31,2025 ("Statement"), attached herewith, being submitted by the
Holding Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing Regulations").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate audited financial statements

of the subsidiary, the Statement:

1. includes the results of the following entities;

a. a. Kesar Middle East - FZCO(a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) company incorporated in Dubai
& its step down subsidiary M/s DEJA VUE-FZCO)

b. Kesar Green Power Pvt. Ltd.

c. Kesar IM Infraprojects

d. Kesar Maitreya Realties

e. Kesar Naturals Pvt. Ltd.

f. Y K Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (its step down subsidiary Propsnap Reality Pvt. Ltd.)

g. Y KInfraprojects Pvt. Ltd.

1L

are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and

IIl. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated net profit and other financial
information of the Group for the year ended March 31,2025.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Results" section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics'
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in "Other Matter" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual financial statements. The
Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Statement that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Group in accordance with the applicable accounting standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities ; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Statement by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the disclosures,
and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit, evidence regarding the financial results of the entities within the
Group of which we are the independent auditors to express an opinion on the Statement. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial information of
such entities included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors. such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities

included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular No. CIR/CFD /CMD1/ 44/2019 dated
March 29, 2019 issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India under Regulation 33 (8) of the Listing
Regulation, to the extent applicable.

Other Matter

The accompanying Statement includes the audited financial results/statements and other financial
information, in respect of: o




* One foreign Subsidiary, Kesar Middle East - FZCO & its step-down subsidiary M/s DEJA VUE-
FZCO, whose financial results/statements include total assets of Rs 1839.64 lakhs (AED 79,09,512/-)
as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 2712.50 lakhs (AED 1,16,62,354/-) and total profit/(loss) of
Rs. 90.67 lakhs (AED 3,89,829) for the Year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the Statement
which have been audited by respective independent auditor.

 Other Subsidiaries - Other subsidiaries include Kesar Green Power Pvt. Ltd., Kesar IM Infraprojects,
Kesar Maitreya Realties, Kesar Naturals Pvt. Ltd., Y K Infracon Pvt Ltd. (its step-down subsidiary
company Propsnap Reality Pvt. Ltd. and Y K Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. whose financial
results/statements include total assets of Rs 277.83 Lakh, as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of
Rs. 0.19 lakhs and total profit/(loss) of Rs. (7.01) lakhs for the Year ended March 31, 2025, as
considered in the Statement which have been audited by respective independent auditors.

The independent auditor's report on the financial statements of these entities have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the Statement in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of subsidiary is based solely on the reports of such auditor and the procedures
performed by us as stated in paragraph above.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

(c) The Consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, and the
consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2025, taken on record by the board of directors of the Holding Company and the
report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director of that company in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

(f) In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;




i. The consolidated financial statements has disclosed the pending litigations in its financial
statement which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There has not been any occasion during the year under report to transfer any sums to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. So the question of delay in
transferring the sum does not arise.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us on the Company, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement '

v. During the year, Company neither declared the dividend nor paid, therefore this clause is not
applicable to the company.

ForRH A D & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 102588W

Dinesh Bangar,. .

(Partner) NYEDACCY
M. No. : 036247

UDIN: 25036247BMLWWP1074
Place: Mumbai

Date: 21.05.2025




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L51220MH2003PLC142989

PAN: AYQPG3689K

Place : Nagpur Place : Nagpur

Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025

R ff i oor, Saraf Chambers, Mount Road, agpur-440001
Email:- Info@kesarlands.com. Tel:- 0712-2568888
Consolidated Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
Noie, Asat Asat
Particulars No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share capital 2 2,471.28 2471.28
|(b) Reserves and surplus 3 2,444.64 529.03
() Money Received against Share Warrants - -
4,915.92 3,000.31
2. Long Term Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 176.35 133.82
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 - -
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities - -
(d) Other Long Term Provisions 6 28.63 20.36
204.98 154.18
3. Current liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 7 2,510.70 2,017.75
(b) Trade Payable 8
(i) Total outstanding dues of MSME - -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
MSME 1,712.91 2,904.83
(c) Other current liabilities 9 1,140.69 1,494.35
(d) Short Term Provisions 10 660.40 397.52
6,024.70 6,814.44
TOTAL 11,145.61 9,968.93
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 273.76 70.16
Intangible assets B -
(b) Non Current Investments - -
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 26.48 3.78
(d) Long-term loans and advances 12 51.60 10.49
() Other Non Current Assets = =
351.85 84.43
2. Current assets
(a) Current Investments 13 - 17232
(b) Inventory 14 4,556.77 5,618.59
(c) Trade Receivables 15 1,707.43 319.10
{d) Cash and cash equivalents 16 3,392.29 3,628.04
(e) Short-term loans and advances s =
(f) Other Current Assets 17 1,137.28 146.46
10,793.76 9,884.51
TOTAL 11,145.61 9,968.93
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial statements.
As per our report of even date = Ty
For RHAD and Company For and on behalf of Board of Director
Chartered Accountafits 3\ KESAR INDIA LIMITED
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 102588
Dinesh angar Ya P chin Gupta
Partner . Wholetime Director Managing Director
|Membership No. 036247 DIN 02331896 DIN 07289877
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P uri Gupta aJain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

PAN: AOJPJ8945C

Place : Nagpur
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KESAR INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L51220MH2003PLC142989
Regd. Off :- 2nd Floor, Saraf Chambers, Mount Road, Sadar, Nagpur-240001
Email:- Info@kesarlands.com. Tel:- 0712-2568888
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Not For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars v March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
) Lacs Lacs
INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations 18 10,779.06 5,341.64
(b) Other income 19 205.98 57.91
Total Income (A) 10,985.04 5,399.55
Expenses
20A &
{(a) Cost of Goods Sold 20B 6,607.17 2,804.75
(b) Employee benefits expense 21 329.99 217.53
(c) Finance cost 22 98.17 14.47|
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 69.04 36.34
(e) Other expenses 23 1,306.85 844.34
Total Expenses (B) 8,411.22 3,917.43
Profit before tax (A-B) 2,573.83 1,482.12
‘Tax expense (C)
(a) Current tax 660.40 397.52
(b) Deferred tax Liabilities/ (Assets) -22.70 1.04
637.70 398.56
Profit after tax (B-C) 1,936.13 1,083.56
Earnings per share 26
(a) Basic 7.83 22.54
(b) Diluted 7.83 22.54
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For RHAD and Company For and on behalf of Board of Director

Chartered Accountants KESAR INDIA LIMITED

(ICAI Firm Registration No. 102588W)~
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Partner ,' oletime Director Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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KESAR INDIA
CIN: 151220MH2003PLC142989

= r, Saraf Cham Moun| dar, Na
- rlands com. Tel:- D712
Consolidated Cash flow stat for the year ended 31st Mar, 2025
Rupees In Lacs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 2,573.83 1.482.12
Adjusted for;
Depreciation 69.04 36.34
Interest Expenses 98.17 1447
Employee Benefit Expenses - Gratutity 8.27 .99
Interest on FOR & [T Refund (100.46) (57.19)
Dividend Received (1.49) (0.03)
Profit / Loss on sale of Shares (103.71) (0.48)
(30.18) -11.88
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,543.65 1,470.24
(Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,061.82 (4,669.73)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,388.33) (162.84)
(Increase)/ Decrease in loans and advances and other current assets (1,031.93) 90210
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables (1,191.91) 2,904.83
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Liabilities (353.67) 657.37
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Liabilities - (151.80)
[2,904.02) -520.07
Cash Generated from Operations (360.37) 950.17
Income tax paid (Net) (380.94) (29.22)
Opening Loss of Subsidiary (30.19)
Foreign exchange fluctation gain 210
Net Cash used in Operating Activities {778.40) 920.95

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (317.88) (244)
Sale of Fixed Assets 45.23 -
Investment in Shares & Mutual Fund 17232 (172.32)
Interest on FDR & IT Refund 100.46 57.19
Dividend Received 1.49 0.03
Profit / Loss on sale of Shares 103.71 0.48
Net Cash used in Invesling Activities 10533 -117.05

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid (98.17) (14.47)

Net Receipt of Borrowings 49295 2,017.75

Met Repayment of Borrowings 42.54 (62.03)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 43732 1,941.25
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (235.76) 2,745.16
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,628.04 882,89
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,392.29 3,628.04

For and on behalf of Board of Director
KESAR INDIA LIMITED

For RHAD and Company
Chartered Accountanis

1 Registration No. 102586W).
- Ry W
Dinesh Bangar 5h Gupla achin Gupta
Partner | | f Wholetime Director Managing Director
Mmbmh&a No. 036247 DIN 02331896 DIN 07289877
L ’
g)hhuri Gupla itha Jain
Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secrelary
PAN: AYQPG3689K PAN: AQJT]8945C
Place : Nagpur Place : Nagpur Place : Nagpur

Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025 Date : 21/05/2025




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

|S No|Particulars

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

KESAR INDIA LIMITED "the Company”(Formerly known as "Kesar Impex (India) Private Limited") was
incorporated on 05th November, 2003 as a private limited company and converted from Private Limited to Public
Limited company on 15th December 2021. The Company is engaged to carry on the business as builders, property
developers, Engineering Contractors, Civil, mechanical and labour contractors, building and erection engineers,
consultants, dealers in, importers, exporters and manufactures of prefabricated and precast houses, materials, tools,
implements, machinery and metalware in connection therewith or incidental thereto and to purchase, acquire, take on
lease or in exchange or in any other lawful manner any area, land, buildings, structures and to turn the same into
account, develop the same, dispose off or maintain the same and give away for rentals.

a. |Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. |Use of Estimates:

The preparation of restated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts in the financial statements and reported notes thereto. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Differences between the actual result and estimates are recognized in periods in which the results are known/
materialized.

¢. |Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
The cost of an asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working
condition for its intended use. Expenditure on additions, improvements and renewals is capitalized and expenditure
for maintenance and repairs is charged to profit and loss account.

d. |Depreciation/Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the Written Down Value (WDV) Method as per the useful life

prescribed in Schedule IT to Companies Act, 2013,
Assets costing Rs. 5000/~ or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase

e. |Stock
Inventory are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsclescence, if any. Cost of]

inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing them to their respective present
condition. Cost of Inventory is determined on FIRST IN FIRST OUT BASIS.

f. |Valuation of Investments:
i. Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

ii. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on the basis of category of investment.

iii. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a
decline other than temporary in the value of investments.




—

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue/Income and Cost/Expenditure are accounted on accrued basis, insignificant items
which are accounted on cash basis.

Revenue from Sale of Plots activities is recognised when Sale Deed is executed each project wise, customer obtains,
control of the property transferred and a reasonable expectation of collection of the sale consideration from the
customer exists.

Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering of services are classified as short term benefits.
Benefits include salaries, wages, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay, etc. and are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. Liability on account of encashment of leave, Bonus to employee is considered as
short term compensated expense provided on actual.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Earning Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year after prior period adjustments
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Taxation & Deferred Tax:

Provision for Current Tax is made in accordance with the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax is
recognized on timing differences between taxable & accounting income / expenditure that originates in one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period(s).

Contingent Liabilities / Provisions:

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent liabilities are not provided
in the accounts and are disclosed separately in notes to accounts.




KESAR INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 2: Share capital

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Authorised:
4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 /- each 4,000.00 4,000.00
(Y. 4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 /- each.)
Total 4,000.00 4,000.00
|Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
2,47,12,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ - each fully paid-up. 2,471.28 353.04
(P.Y. 35,30,400 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each)
Bonus Share issued
2,11,82,400 Equity Share of Rs 10/- each - 2,118.24
Total 2471.28 2,471.28

Notes:

(i) Rights of Equity Shareholders

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In the event of
|liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the End of the Year

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Fasitns Numberof | Amountin | Number of sh

h held Lacs held Amount in Lacs
|Shares outstanding at the beginning 2,47,12,800 2471.28 35,30,400 353.04
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the - - 2,11,82,400 2,118.24
year
Add: New Shares issued during the - - = -
Shares outstanding at the end of the 2,47,12,800 2,471.28 2,47,12,800 2471.28
year

(iii) Details of Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of aggregate Equity shares in

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of Equity Shareholder Number of
1 held % holding % holding % holding
GOPAL GUFTA 1,67,28,600 67.69% 1,67,28,600 67.69%
AG DYNAMIC FUNDS LIMITED 17,36,000 7.02% 17,36,000 7.02%
FORBES EMF 13,66,400 5.53% 13,66,400 5.53%
(iv) Details of Shareholding of Promoters Group as on 31.03.2025
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % Change
Promoter Name Number of Number of shares during the
shares held % holding held % holding year
GOPAL GUFTA 1,67,28,600 67.69% 1,67,28,600 67.69% 0.00%
SANGEETA GOFPAL GUPTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
YASH GUPTA 8,75,476 354% 8,735,476 3.54% 0.00%
SACHIN GUPTA 9,26,324 3.75% 9,26,324 3.75% 0.00%
|JFPANKHURI GUFTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
SHWETA GUPTA 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
YASH GUPTA HUF 700 0.00% 700 0.00% 0.00%
TOTAL 1,85,33,200 74.99% 1,85,33,200 74.99%

F.Y. 2022-23.

(v) Company has issued Bonus shares 2,11,82,400 of Rs. 10/~ each in F.Y. 2023-24 and 2,574,000 Equity Share of Rs 10/- each in




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3: Reserves and Surplus

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year - 1,466.15
Add: Received on issue of new shares - =
Add/(Less): IPO related expenses - -
capitalised
Less: Utilisation during the year - 1,466.15
Balance at the end of the year - =
b) Surplus of Profit and Loss Account 529.03 97.78
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 1,936.13 1,083.56
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account-Kesar -30.19
Natural Pvt Ltd
Add/(Less): Bonus shares issued - -652.09
during the year
Add/(Less): Conversation Rate Diff 210
Add/(Less): Adjustment Made Due to Earlier Year 7.58 -0.22
Income Tax
2,444 64 529.03
Total 2,444.64 529.03
Note 4: Long Term Borrowings
" As at As at
Eexidon s March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Secured Loans
- Car Loan 176.35 22.45
(b) Unsecured Loans
- From Directors B 82,57
- From Related Parties - 28.80
Total 176.35 133.82

4y
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KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 5: Deferred Tax Liability/Asset

S As at As at
e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Opening Balance -3.78 -4.82
Add/Less: DTL / (DTA) -22.70 1.04
Closing Balance -26.48 -3.78
Note 6: Other Long Term Provisions
. As at As at
1
Rasticalacs March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Provision for Employee Benefits
(Gratuity) 28.63 20.36
Total 28.63 20.36

Note 7: Short Term Borrowings

6.1 : Gratuity provisions are made in accordance with Actuarial Valuation provided by Valuer (Trueval Consulting)

held by the company.

= As at As at

ety o March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs

(a) Secured Loans

- Punjab National Bank-OD Account 1,981.37 2,017.75

- HDFC Bank -OD Account 0.07 -
(b) Unsecured Loans

- From Directors 129.26 -

- From Related Parties 400.00
Total 2,510.70 2,017.75
Note No 7.1

a)The company is having Overdraft Facility of Rs. 20 Crore from Punjab National Bank against mortgage of
Immovable Properties held by Director / Shareholder of the company.
b) The company is having Overdraft Facility of Rs. 2.56 Crore from HDFC Bank against Pledge of Fixed Deposits




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Particulars

31.03.2025 (3)

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments

More than 3

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years e Total
(i) MSME % z = =
(i) Others 1,705.05 7.86 - - 1,712.91
(i1i) Disputed dues - MSME £ i 2 E,
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 5 = -
1,705.05 7.86 . . 1,712.91
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
31.03.2024 (%)
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Ma;ee::n 3 Total
(i) MSME " = . ™ =
(if) Others 2,904.83 - - - 2,904.83
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME " a = & &
(iv) Disputed dues - Others % - - =
2,904.83 = - - 2,904.83
Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Statutory Dues 7.30 8.89
(b) Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 39.26 20.57,
(c) Advance Taken
- From Related Parties U.OUL 0.00
- From Customers 419.87 1180.26
(d) Expenses Payable
- Provision for Project Development Expenses 318.72 0.00}
(Note No. 20.1)
- Provision Amenties for Project Expenses 321.11 200.28
(Note No. 23.1)
- Auditor Remuneration Payable 4.05 2.25
- Salary Payable to Directors/Shareholders 8.74 69.60|
- Salary & Wages Payable 18.15 10.48
- Other Expenses Payable 3.49 2.03
Total 1,140.69 1,494.35




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 10: Short Term Provisions

i As at As at
Particul
e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(a) Provision for Income Tax 660.40 397.52
Total 660.40 397.52

10.1 Income Tax Provisions have been made in accordance with the prevailing provisions of 1.T.Act 1961

Note 12 : Long Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
a) Security Deposits
- Rent Deposits 46.29 6.20]
- CCD & Nestle Machine Deposits 0.40 0.25
- Eletricity Security Deposit 1.32 0.75
- Security Deposit at NMRDA 3.29 3.29
- Security Deposit at CDSL & NSDL 0.30 0.00
b) Loans Given
To Related Parties 0.00 0.00
To Others 0.00 0.00
Total 51.60 10.49




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 13: Current Investments

3 As at As at
Pastienlats March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
(A) Quoted shares & Mutual Fund
Investment in securities - 162.32
Investment in Mutual Fund - 10.00
(B) Unquoted
Investment in Subsidiary Companies - -
Investment in Partnership Firms - -
Total - 172.32

Naote 13.1 : Market Value of Quated Shares and Mutual Fund as on 31-03-2025 is Rs - NIL (Previous Year 1,74,72,978.59/-)

Note 14: Inventories

Particul As at As at
TR March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Lacs Lacs

1. STOCK OF LAND

(a) Land Cost 2,863.65 3,910.27

(b) Development Cost (WIP) 938.43 1,708.33

(¢) Land Cost-Kesar IM Project 114.56 =

II. STOCK of Shares and Securites

(a) Equity Shares 640.13 -

Total 4,556.77 5,618.59




KESAR INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 15: Trade Receivables

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 31.03.2025 (¥)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Total
(2)

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered goods
(i.a) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered goods - Overseas Branch

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered goods

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Credit impaired

1,661.66

20.77

25.00

1,707.43

Total

1,661.66

20.77

25.00

1,707.43

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 31.03.2024 (%)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Total
(2)

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered goods

(i.a) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered goods - Overseas Branch

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -

Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Considered qoods
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in

credit risk
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Credit impaired

144.00

110.10

65.00

319.10

Total

110.10

65.00

319.10




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 16: Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Lacs Lacs
a) Cash - in - hand 57.98 25.57
b) Bank Balance 1153.12 1383.91
) FDR having maturity within 12 months 2181.18 2218.56
Total 3,392.29 3,628.04
Note 17: Other Current Assets
ikt As at As at

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Lacs Lacs
a) Advances to Suppliers / Service Providers 187.77 1.81
b) Site Development Exp 65.25 20.99
¢) Advance For Land 422.00 2.50
d) Advance Tax & TDS 251.48 52.32
e) Salary & Expenses Advance 53.26 5.19
f) Prepaid Expenses 54.37 25.90
g) Zerodha Broking 0.00} 37.74
h) Advances to Subsidary 76.24 0.00)
Comapanies/ Partnership Firms
i) Other Current Assets-Kesar Natural 7.34 0.00
j) Other Current Assets-Y K Infracon Consolidated 0.10 0.00
k) Other Current Assets-Y K Infraproject 0.10 0.00
m) Other Current Assets-Kesar IM Infraporject 19.37 0.00
Total 1,137.28 146.46




KESAR INDIA LIMITED

Motes forming part of the financial statements

MNote 11: Fixed assets
| (Figure In Lacs)
Particulars Gross block Depreciaton Net Block
As at :;iucounl Asat Asat
31 March, 20 arch,
m::\:-ﬂ Additions Deductions RHED Asat ot pesiation Deductions S =
2028 i O1st April, 2024 | Accounting| for the year
Policy
(Note 7.1)
(a) CAR & Electrical Vechile 162.17 243.87 45.23 360.80 105.49 0.00 5293 0.00 158.42 202.39
(b} Plant & Machinery 3.00 1.39 0.00 4.39 232 0.00 0.3 0.00 2.63 1.75
(c) Office Equipments 15.04 25.20 0.00 40.24 10.26 0.00 7.19 0.00 1745 22.30
(d) Computer & Printer 11.53 911 0.00 20.65 8.32 0.00 3.64 0.00 11.96 8.68
|(e) Furniture & Fixture 713 38.31 0.00 45.44 233 0.00 4,97 0.00 7.30 38.14
Total 198.87 J17.88 45.23 471.51 128,71 0.00 69.04 0.00 197.76 273.76
Previous Year 196.43 | 2.44 | 195.87 | 92.37 | -] 36.34 | - 128.71 | 70.16




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 18: Revenue from Operations

1 As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Lacs Lacs
Sale of Securites 429.95 0.00
Sales of Advertising Requisites 2663.66 0.00
Sales of Cosmatic Goods 0.19 0.00]
Consultancy Income 48.84 78.34
Total 10779.06 5341.64

Notes 18.1:- In earlier period, Company had made Investment in Listed Equities and
Mutual Funds which was shown as current Investment of the company till 30th
September, 2024. Since the Company is doing frequent transactions in Share Trading
activities; It is decided by the Management to disclose all theses transactions as another
business activity of the company. Accordingly, all the transactions executed by the

company from 1st October 2024 onwards is shown under Revenue from Operations.

Note 19 : Revenue from Operations

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
- Interest Income 100.46 57.19]
- Dividend Income 1.49] 0.03
- Miscellaneous Income 0.32 0.21
(Apr-24 to Sep-24) 103.71 0.48
Total 205.98 57.91

Note 19.1:- Interest Income includes the Interest on Loan charged on Wholly owned




KESAR INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 20 A: Change in Inventory

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs

Opening Stock including WIP

- Land Cost 3910.27 481.68
- Development Cost of Land 1708.33 467.18
TOTAL [A] 5618.59 948.86
Purchase & Direct Expenses
Cost of Land Purchase including Stamp Duty & 845.28 5023.63
Registration
Cost of Purchase-Kesar Middle East 2356.39 0.00
Cost of Purchase-Kesar Natural Pvt Ltd 1.79 0.00
Direct Expenses incurred during the year for 762.21 2450.85
Development of Land
Estimated Expenses to be incured (Notes 20 A.1) 318.72 0.00
TOTAL [B] 4284.38 7474.48
Closing Stock including WIP

- Closing Stock of Land 2863.65 30910.27
- Development Cost of Land 938.43 1708.33
TOTAL [C] 3802.08 5618.59

Total 6100.89 2804.75

submitted to Rera Authority.

Note 20 A.1 Provision for expenses is made amounting to Rs 318.72 Lacs (P.Y. NIL) in
respect of "KESAR GOLD" & "KESAR GARDEN-2" projects in propornate to the
estimated development expenses to be incured to complete the project as per document




KESAR INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 20 B: Stock in Inventory

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Opening Stock of Shares and
securities
- Opening Stock As on 01-10-24 427 48 0.00
TOTAL [A] 427.48 0.001
Purchase During the year
Purchase Durig the period 718.92 0.00}
TOTAL [B] 718.92 0.00
Closing Stock of Shares and
securities
- Closing Stock 640.13 0.00
TOTAL [C] 640.13 0.00
[Valued at Lower of Cost or Market Value]
Cost of Goods Sold 506.27 0.00
Note 21: Emplovee Benefit Expenses
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Salary to Directors 112.00 107.00
Salaries and Wages 19233 104.70|
Provision for Gratuity 8.27 -4.99
Staff Welfare Expenses 17.39 10.82
Total 329.99 217.53

Valuer.

Note 22: Finance Cost

21.1: Gratuity provisions are made in accordance with Actuarial Valuation provided by

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs
Interest on Car Loan 13.72 4.68
Bank Charges 0,23 8.04
Interest on OD facility 75.22 175
14.47

98,17}

bz
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KESAR INDTA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 23: Other Expenses

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lacs Lacs

Audit Fees 4.61 2.50
Project Site Expenses 135.67| 249.26
Conveyance Expenses 15.39 17.16
Office Expenses 67’.09L 19.82
Insurance & Vechile Insurance Charges 8.63 5.05
Brokerage and Commission Charges 22941 252.48
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Fees 103.90) 50.34
Rates and Taxes 4.65 35.67
Electricity Charges 10.62 5.93
Travelling Expenses 131.56 65.20
Repair and Maintenance - Office 8.54 6.14
Repair and Maintenance - Vehicle 8.21 3.53
Rent Expenses 57.47 13.29
Miscellaneous Expenses 67.75 17.83
Membership & Subscription Charges 23.63 11.82
Telephone and Communication Expense 12.32 8.18
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Exp 80.85 63.11
Printing & Stationery Charges 5.99 10.62
CSR Expenses 13.97 4.60
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 523 0.00
Tender & Processing Fees Charges 11.30 0.00
Business Conference expenses 30.24 0.00
Security Transaction Charges 4.13 0.00
Gen. & Admin Exp. 260.69 1.82
General & Admain Expense-Kesar Green 0.54 0.00
General & Admain Expense-Kesar Natural 3.86 0.00
General & Admain Expense-YK Infracon Conolidated 0.22 0.00
General & Admain Expense-YK Infraproject 0.36 O.OOL

Total 1306.85 844.34

Note 23.1 : Project Site expenses include the provision for project expenses to be incurred
amounting to Rs. 121.45 (P.Y. : 200.28) for providing the various amenities under the project.




Note 24. Related Party Details :-

: Holding % Details
Name of Party Relation " [Oneeer
3% ' e | Others | Loan i
Gopal Gupta Relative of Director - - 34.50 15.00 | 1,167.77 - - 400.00 400.00 = -9.01
3 Gupta Director = - 16.80 391 | 147400 - - 100,00 100.00 = - =
Yash Gupta Director - = 31.27 | 50.00 - - - - - - 3.14 -
Sachin Gupta Director - = 50,00 - - - - = - 3.17 -
Pi 1 Gupta Director - - - 12.00 - - - - - , 1.20 -
Shweta Gupta Director - - & 10.00 = = = e = - 1.22 -
Nishit Gupta Relative of Directar - . - - 30.67 - - - - - 30.67
Kesar Green Power Pyt Ltd  [Whaly Owned idiry 100 - - - - 0.64 - - - - - 0.64
¥ K Inf Pvt Lid Wholy Owned Subsidiry 00| - - - . 0.28 = . . = 0,28
Propenap Realty Pyt Lid ] bsidiry
Y K Infraproject Pyt Lid Whely Owned Suhai% 100 - - - 0.56 - - - - - 0.56
Kesar Natural Pvt Ltd Whely Owned Subsidiry 100 - - - - 28.31 - - - - 28.31
Kesar IM Infraproj Par Firm-51% Share 51 49 - - - 155.58 11.51 - - 11.00 ot 155.84
Kesar Maitreys Realties Partnership Firm-51% Share 51 49 - - - - - - - - - -
r_Kr_ﬂu' Middle East - FZCO Wholy Owned Subsidiry 100 - 232,50 = = + 0.00 - 237.06 - - -
M/5 DEJA VUE-FZCO pdown Subsidiry
B Enterprise wherein the|
Kesar Infracan Pye Lad Director or Relative of Director| x 3 28.80 s = = & 5 = & 20.77
of the company are thel
Kesar Gatewsy Pyt Lud Direetor / Shareholder = . - . 116.73 . - 5 y 116,73
F.Y. 2023-24
Holding % Details | During the year Transaction [n Lacs Closing Balance In Lacs
Name of Party Relation Unseenred Adsmnce Suadey |/ oo | o e
Indts Repaid B d Loan : Payable | Payable]

L of Land
Gopal Gupta Relative of Director - 6.00 | 15.00| 2,007.21 - 3449 - 2.11 1,156.97
Sangeeta Gupta Director - - - 5.00| 2,007.21 - 16.80 - 3.91 1,463.00
Yash Gupta Director - - 33.05| 45.00 - 31.27 - 26.98 -
Sachin Gupta Director - - - 45.00 - - - = 34.94 -
Pankhuri Gupta Director - - - 12.00 - - - 0.90 -
Shweta Gupta Director - - - 10.00 - - - - 0.76 -

Enterprise wherein the
Kenir ifimon vt Lo Director or Relative of Director| = = 240 - 2873 L0 - -
B Gateway Pyt Ltd of the company are the|

Director [/ Sharehold - - - - 1,891.59 = = =




Note 25. Details of foreign currency transaction :-

Asat As at March 31,
|Particulars March 31, 2025 2024
a) Income in Foreign Currency
Export Income B =
b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travelling 26.53 -
Others - .
Note 26. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share
" As at Asat March 31,
Funiaiy March 31, 2025 2024
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,936.13 1,083.56
Weighted Average Number of shares at year end
24713 48.07
Basic Earning per share 7.83 2254
Diluted Earning per share 7.83 22.54

Note 27, Disclosure under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31st March 2024. Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have|
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management,

Note 28. Financial Ratio

. " N . As at As at March 31,

Financial Ratio Details March 31, 2025 2024 Variance (in %)
Current Ratio 1.79 145 23.51%
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.04 0.05 -18.10%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 24,52 98.91 -75.21%
Return on Equity Ratio 39.38% 36.11% 9.05%
Inventory Turnover Ratio 042 1.33 -68.22%
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 6.31 16.74 -62.29%
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 0.94 257 -63.53%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 2.26 1.74 29.90%
Net Profit Ratio 17.96% 20.29% -11.45%
Return on Capital Employed 52.18% 47.44% 9.98%
Methodology :

1. Current Ratip = Current Asset/Current Liability

2. Debt-Equity Ration = Total Debt/(Total Debt + Equity)

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITDA /Finance Cost

4. Return on Equity Ratio = Profit After Tax/Total Shareholder's Equity

5. Inventory Turnover Ratio = Purchase/ Inventory

6. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Revenue from Operations/ Trade Receivable

7. Trade Payables turnover ratio = Purchase/ Trade Payable

8, Net Capital turnover ratio = Revenue From Operations/(Current Asset - Current Liability)

9. Net Profit ratio = Profit After Tax/Revenue From Operations

10. Return on Capital Employed = Earning before Interest and Taxes/ (Total Sharcholder’s Equity+Long Term Liability)

Reason for more than 25% variance in ratio:
1. During the year, there is significant increase in Turnover and Profitalibity. Hence, relevant ratios are changed

significantly as compare to previous vear,
2. During previous financial year, Company has issued the Bonus Share Therefore, Equity is significantely increased. Hence,

relevant ratios are changed.

Note 29. Loans Given, Investment Made and Guarantee given covered under sec. 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) The Company has not given any loans or guarantees other than shown in Financial statements.
(i) The Company has not made any Investments other than shown in Financial statements.




Note 30. Contingent Liabilities

a) Company has given Bank Guarantee of Rs. 12,50 Lakh For installation of STP & Maintainces & 87.50 Lakh fortowards
Maintaince of Infrastructur of Works on Project to Cantonment Board, Kamptee, Nagpur, Maharashtra through ICICI Bank
on dated 12/04/2024 respectively. Company has submitted the Fixed Deposit for Security of said Bank Guarantee,

31. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

The particulars of expenditure are as follows:

a) During the year company has Spent Rs. 13.97 Lacs on account of Corporate social responsibilities (P.Y. amount spent was
4.60 Lacs)

32. Additional Disclosures

a) The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property.

b) The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

¢) The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

d) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search
or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

€) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and
any of the previous financial years.

\f) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g) During the year, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 33. General

In the opinion of the Management, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the Books of Accounts and provision for all known liabilities has been made, except as
mentioned otherwise.

Note 34. The Reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.

Note 35. The figures of previous year have been regrouped /rearranged/reclassified wherever necessary to comparable to
the classification of the current year.
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